
 
CITY OF BRUNSWICK 

601 Gloucester Street * Post Office Box 550 * Brunswick * Georgia * 31520-0550 * (912) 267-5500 * Fax (912) 267-5549 
 

Cosby H. Johnson, Mayor                        City Attorney 
Julie T. Martin, Mayor Pro Tem                      Brian D. Corry 
John A. Cason III, Commissioner                      
Felicia M. Harris, Commissioner                                                                                                                              City Manager 
Kendra L. Rolle, Commissioner                Regina M. McDuffie 
                                                         
      

www.brunswickga.org  
AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

 

AGENDA 
*** 

BRUNSWICK CITY COMMISSION  
REGULAR SCHEDULED COMMISSION MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 18, 2023 AT 6:00 P.M. 
1229 NEWCASTLE STREET, 2nd FLOOR 

& 
STREAMED LIVE AT THE BELOW WEB ADDRESS: 

https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER **INVOCATION **PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
1. Adoption of January 18, 2023 Regular Meeting Agenda.  
ANNOUNCEMENT 
2. Appointment made to Brunswick Housing Authority. (Mayor) 
UPDATE(S)  
3. 2023 Comprehensive Plan.  (J. Hunter) (Encl. 1) 
ITEM(S) TO CONSIDER FOR APPROVAL 
4. Consider Approval of January 4, 2023 Regular Scheduled Meeting Minutes.  (subject to any necessary 
     changes.)  (N. Atkinson) (Encl. 2) 
5. Consider Approval of Resolution No. 2023-02 ~ Homelessness Prevention Assistance Program.            
    (R. McDuffie) (Encl. 3) 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  

http://www.brunswickga.org/
https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga


  

OFFICIAL MINUTES  
BRUNSWICK CITY COMMISSION  
REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 4, 2023 
 AT 6:00 P.M.  

1229 NEWCASTLE STREET, 2nd FLOOR 
& 

STREAMED LIVE AT THE BELOW WEB ADDRESS: 
https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga 

 
PRESENT:  Honorable Mayor Cosby Johnson, Mayor Pro-Tem Felicia Harris ~ (via zoom),  
                       Commissioner John Cason III, Commissioner Julie Martin, and Commissioner Kendra  
                       Rolle    
CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Johnson - meeting began at 6:00 p.m. 
INVOCATION: Reverend Scott Stanfill, College Place United Methodist Church 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Recited in unison by all in attendance 
 
ADDENDUM TO AGENDA:  

** 
Commissioner Cason made a motion to add as item number four (4) “Discussion of incident in 
Hanover Square”; seconded by Commissioner Martin.  Motion passed unanimously. 

** 
Commissioner Rolle made a motion to add to the alcohol renewal list: 

Alcohol Renewals 
Reid’s Apothecary  Owner: Christopher Gantt 1618 Newcastle St. On premise consumptions 

of beer, wine, and liquor 
seconded by Commissioner Cason.  Motion passed unanimously. 

** 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

1. Adoption of January 4, 2023 Regular Meeting Agenda.  
Commissioner Martin made a motion to adopt the above-referenced agenda as amended; 
seconded by Commissioner Cason.  Motion passed unanimously. 

APPOINTMENT(S)  
2. 

I. Appointment of Mayor Pro Tem for 2023 
Commissioner Cason made a motion to appoint Commissioner Julie Martin as Mayor Pro 
Tem for 2023; seconded by Commissioner Rolle.  Motion passed unanimously. 

II. Pilotage Commission – Two Appointments 
Commissioner Martin made a motion to re-appoint James Royal, Jr. to the above-referenced 
commission until January 2030; and appoint Tommy Stroud to the above-referenced 
commission to fill the unexpired term of Fleming Martin until January 2027; seconded by 
Commissioner Cason.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 

 

https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga


2 
 

PUBLIC HEARING – NEW ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE(S) (A. Brown) 
3. 

New Alcohol License(s) 
Name of 
Business 

Business Owner/Manager Business 
Address 

Permit Type 

Schroeder's Market, 
Ltd. Co. 

Owner: Nikki Schroeder 
Manager: Madison Schroeder 

203 Gloucester St.  Retail sales of beer and wine 

    Mayor Johnson opened the floor for anyone wanting to speak in favor or opposition of  
    the new license for Schroeder’s Market Ltd. Co.  
    No one came forth to address the Commission. 
    Commissioner Martin made a motion to approve the new alcohol license for Schroeder’s  
    Market Ltd. Co.; seconded by Commissioner Cason.  Motion passed unanimously. 
4. Update regarding the incident at Hanover Square.  (R. McDuffie) 
     Informational only. 
ITEM(S) TO CONSIDER FOR APPROVAL 
5. Consider Approval of December 21, 2022 Regular Scheduled Meeting Minutes.  (subject to any  
     necessary changes.)  (N. Atkinson)  
    Commissioner Cason made a motion to approve the above-referenced minutes; seconded by  
    Commissioner Rolle.  Motion passed unanimously. 
6. Consider Approval of Resolution No. 2023-01 to Adopt Qualifying Fees for 2023 Election.  (N.  
    Atkinson)  
    Commissioner Martin made a motion to approve the above-referenced resolution; seconded by  
    Commissioner Rolle.  Motion passed unanimously. 
7. Consider Approval of Financial Reports as of November 30, 2022.  (K. Mills)   
    Commissioner Martin made a motion to approve the above-referenced reports as submitted;  
    seconded by Commissioner Cason.  Motion passed unanimously. 
8. Consider Approval of Two (2) -Three (3) Alcohol License Renewals, and One (1) Alcohol License  
    Renewal with a Violation. (A. Brown)  
    Commissioner Cason made a motion to approve alcohol license renewal for Baboo Lounge;  
    seconded by Commissioner Martin.  Motion passed unanimously. 
    Commissioner Cason made a motion to approve alcohol license renewal for Island Jerk Shack;  
    seconded by Commissioner Martin.  Motion passed unanimously. 
    Commissioner Cason made a motion to approve alcohol license renewal for Reid’s Apothecary;  
    seconded by Commissioner Martin.  Motion passed unanimously. 
    Commissioner Cason made a motion to approve alcohol license renewal for The Fountain  
    Package Store; seconded by Commissioner Martin.  Motion passed unanimously. 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
Commissioner Cason made a motion to adjourn to executive session to discuss litigation; seconded 
by Commissioner Martin.  Motion passed unanimously. 
RECONVENE FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION  
Mayor Johnson announced no action was taken. 
Commissioner Cason made a motion to adjourn; seconded by Commissioner Rolle.  Motion passed 
by a vote of 4 to 0; Mayor Pro Tem Martin was not present to vote. 

MEETING ADJOURNED – meeting adjourned at 7:42 p.m. 

 
        /s/Cosby H. Johnson   
        Cosby H. Johnson, Mayor  



3 
 

Attest: /s/ Naomi D. Atkinson 
            Naomi D. Atkinson 
            City Clerk 



Page | 1 

SUBJECT:  2023 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE  

COMMISSION ACTION REQUESTED ON:            JANUARY 18, 2023 

PURPOSE: The current Comprehensive Plan was prepared in 2018 and approved by the 
Brunswick City Commission in October 2018. 

Under Georgia Law, for a municipality or county in Georgia to receive and remain eligible for 
certain state funding and permitting programs, it must initially adopt and update its 
Comprehensive Plan every five years. The Georgia Department of Community Affairs (DCA) 
has established guidelines and procedures municipalities and counties must follow in preparing 
and/or updating their Comprehensive Plan. The deadline for completing and submitting a draft of 
the Brunswick Comp Plan update for DCA and Coastal Regional Commission reviews is August 
30, 2023. The Plan must be formally adopted by the City by October 30, 2023 to meet the State 
and DCA requirements. 

The City of Brunswick Planning, Development and Codes staff will begin the process of 
updating its Comprehensive Plan following an initial Public Hearing by the City Commission on 
January 17. 2023. At that meeting, Staff recommends that a Steering Committee will be named 
by the City Commission to be made up of members of the Planning and Appeals Commission. 
The Committee will be charged with the responsibility of guiding the preparation of the plan 
update and will recommend a STAKEHOLDERS Committee to the City Commission which will 
provide input during the preparation process. 

The process that will be followed, as prescribed by the DCA, will include multiple and 
significant opportunities for citizens of Brunswick to provide input into the establishment of 
goals, needs and opportunities to be addressed by the plan as well as alternative solutions and 
proposals to be included in the plan. These will include, among others: 

A. Future land use development,
B. Community infrastructure needs and improvements (streets, drainage,
sidewalks, etc.)
C. Neighborhood revitalization (removal of vacant and dilapidated housing,
rehabilitation of other housing as needed),
D. Affordable housing programs including adoption of policies that can

facilitate new housing development. 

E. Economic development,
F. Transportation needs,
G. And other issues identified in the plan development and citizen input

process. 



Page | 2 

The final element of the Comprehensive Plan update will be a five-year work program that will 
specifically address the efforts and timelines that will be made to implement the plan proposals. 

Opportunities for citizen review and comment will include: 
A. Public forums,
B. Open house sessions to receive and discuss issues and plans in small groups

or one-on-one, 
C. Access to on-line surveys and forums for submitting comments

electronically, 
D. On-line posting of plan elements as they are developed and proposed for

comment responses, 
E. And, a final Public Hearing before the Updated 2023 Comprehensive Plan is

adopted by the City Commission. 

Attached are a timeline of the Comprehensive Plan Update process and a list of potential 
Stakeholders to be considered by the PAC for recommendation to the City Commission. 

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  Initiate the Comprehensive Plan 
Update process and designate the Planning and Appeals Commission as the Plan Steering 
Committee 

DEPARTMENT: Planning, Development & Codes (PDC) 

Prepared by: John Hunter 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS: 

ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION: 

________________________________ ________________________ 

City Manager Date

Approved - Regina McDuffie

January 5, 2023



PLAN OUTLINE FOR UPDATE OF COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

DUE DATE FOR CRC AND DCA REVIEW: BY SEPTEMBER 1, 2023 

ADOPTION BT CITY COMMISSION BY OCTOBER 30, 2021 

STEPS TO BE TAKEN AND PRELIMINARY WORK PLAN 

STEP 1: JANUARY 2023: ESTABLISH THE PLANNING AND APPEALS COMMISSION AS THE STEERING 

COMMITTEE: CITY COMMISSION TO HOLD (FIRST) PUBLIC HEARING SECOND MEETING IN JANUARY TO 

ANNOUNCE THE COMP PLAN UPDATE, NAMING THE PAC AS THE STEERING COMMITTEE AND PROCESS 

TO BE FOLLOWED TO UPDATE THE COMP PLAN. 

A. PREPARE OUTLINE OF UPDATE REQUIREMENTS AND SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES LEADING TO

SUBMISSION OF DRAFT TO DCA FOR REVIEW.

B. JANUARY CITY COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING – SECOND MEETING IN JANUARY:

a. REVIEW PROCESS THAT MUST BE FOLLWED IN PREPARING THE UPDATE PER DCA

GUIDELINES,

b. ASK PAC FOR RECOMMENDATIONS FOR “STAKEHOLDERS” TO BE APPOINTED TO A

COMMITTEE THAT WILL REVIEW PLAN UPDATE ELEMENTS AND INCORPORATE

PUBLIC COMMENT.

c. DISCUSS PUBLIC INPUT METHODS THAT WILL BE EMPLOYED DURING PLAN

PREPARATION

d. REVIEW SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES LEADING TO SUBMISSION OF DRAFT OF PLAN

UPDATE TO DCA FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL PRIOR TO ADOPTION BY THE CITY

COMMISSION.

STEP 2. FEBRUARY 2023: CITY COMMISSION TO APPOINT STAKEHOLDER COMMITTEE IN EARLY 

FEBRUARY USING RECOMMENDATION FROM THE STEERING COMMITTEE (PAC) 

STEP 3. FEBRUARY 2023: FOLLOWING APPOINTMENT OF STAKEHOLDER COMMITTEE HOLD FIRST 

ORIENTATION MEETING (PUBLIC NOTICE OF MEETING(S) GIVEN) 

A. REVIEW 2018 ADOPTED COMP PLAN, COMMUNITY NEEDS AND OPPORTUNITIES, GOALS

AND WORK PLAN. 2018

B. PRELIMINARY DISCUSSION OF NEEDED CHANGES IN COMMUNITY NEEDS AND OBJECTIVES

THAT WILL IMPACT THE UPDATE OF PLAN OBJECTIVES AND WORK PROGRAM. (ie. Dealing

with issues like affordable housing, resiliency measures to reduce impacts from frequent

flooding and more frequent adverse weather conditions).

C. REVIEW COMMUNITY INPUT PROGRAM DURING PLAN PREPARATION PROCESS.

STEP 4. MARCH, APRIL MAY: BEGIN AND COMPLETE THE PLAN UPDATE PROCESS. PUBLIC NOTICE OF 

WORK SESSIONS MAY BE GIVEN (NOT REQUIRED) 

A. WORKING WITH THE STEERING COMMITTEE, COMPLETE REVIEW OF ALL ELEMENTS OF THE

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, DETERMINE UPDATES. REVISIONS AND/OR REVISIONS NECESSARY

TO ALL PLAN ELEMENTS

Page | 3 



B. STAFF TO COMPLETE ALL UPDATES, REVISIONS OR ADDITIONS IN DRAFT FORM FOR REVIEW.

C. WORKING WITH CITY STAFF AND CITY, PREPARE A DRAFT 2023 ‐ 2028 WORK PROGRAM FOR

REVIEW BY THE STAKEHOLDER COMMITTEE.

D. PROVIDE CITY COMMISSION WITH PERIODIC UPDATE ON PLAN UPDATE ACTIVITIES.

E. PREPARE MATERIALS FOR PUBLIC INPUT MEETINGS AND OTHER OPPORTUNITIES.

STEP 5: JUNE AND JULY: PUBLIC REVIEW AND INPUT      PUBLIC NOTICE OF MEETING(S) REQUIRED 

A. BEGIN PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT PROGRAMS AT FORMAL PRESENTATIONS, INTEREST GROUP

LISTENING SESSIONS, AND OFFER ELECTRONIC OPPORTUNTIIES FOR INPUT

B. ONCE COMPLETED, PREPARE A SYNOPSIS OF ALL PUBLIC INPUT RECEIVED.

C. REVIEW SYNOPSIS WITH STAKEHOLDERS AND AGREE ON APPROPRIATE CHANGES TO THE

DRAFT COMP PLAN AND WORK PROGRAM.

STEP 6: BY AUGUST 30: COMPLETE FINAL DRAFT OF COMP PLAN UPDATE FOR CITY COMMISSION 

REVIEW AND APPROVAL PRIOR TO PASSING A RESOLUTION SUBMITTING THE DRAFT FOR CRC/DCA 

REVIEW AND APPROVAL. SECOND PUBLIC HEARING REQUIRED PRIOR TO SUBMISSION TO CRC FOR 

REVIEW, 

STEP 6: BY OCTOBER 30: ADOPT COMP PLAN UPDATE     NO PUBLIC HEARING REQUIRED 

A. COMPLETE ANY NECESSARY AND AGREEED UPON CHANGES TO THE DRAFT COMP PLAN

AND WORK PROGRAM REQUIRED BY CRC OR DCA AND PREPARE THE FINAL 2023 – 2028

COMP PLAN UPDATE FOR CITY COMMISSION CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL.

B. CITY COMMISSION TO ADOPT THE COMP PLAN NO LATER THAN OCTOBER 30 AND SUBMIT

RESOLUTION OF APPROVAL TO CRC AND DCA.

C. FOLLOWING ADOPTION, PLAN MUST BE AVAILABLE FOR THE PUBLIC TO ACCESS.

Page | 4 



POSSIBLE STAKEHOLDERS – BRUNSWICK COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

1. CITY GOVERNMENT

a. CITY COMMISSION REPRESENTATIVE (S)

b. CITY MANAGER (OR ASSIST. CITY MANAGER)

c. DIRECTOR PLANNING, DEVELOPMENT AND CODES

d. DIRECTOR OF NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICES

e. CITY ENGINEER

f. BUILDINGS OFFICIAL

g. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

h. URBAN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

i. NPA CHAIRS

2. COUNTY GOVERNMENT

a. COUNTY COMMISSION REPRESENTATIVE

b. DIRECTOR, PLANNING, DEVELOPMENT AND CODES

c. EMA DIRECTOR OR ASSISTANT DIRECTOR

d. MAINLAND PLANNING COMMISSION REPRESENTATIVE

e. GLYNN COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

3. BRUNSWICK HOUSING AUTHORITY

4. GLYNN BRUNSWICK LAND BANK AUTHORITY

5. BRUNSWICK TREE BOARD

6. JOINT WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY REPRESENTATIVE

7. GEORGIA POWER REPRESENTATIVE

8. REPRESENTATIVE GEORGIA PORTS AUTHORITY

9. GA DOT REPRESENTATIVE

10. GA DNR – COASTAL RESOURCES DIVISION

11. COASTAL REGIONAL COMMISSION

12. GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

13. GLYNN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION REPRESENTATIVE

14. BRUNSWICK HISTORIC PRESERVATION BOARD REPRESENTATIVE

15. COLLEGE OF COASTAL GEORGIA REPRESENTATIVE

16. SE GA. MEDICAL SYSTEM

17. PINOVA

18. DOWNTOWN MARINA REPRESENTATIVE

19. BOARD OF REALTORS REPRESENTATIVE

20. COASTAL GEORGIA HISTORICAL SOCIETY

21. COASTAL AFRICAN AMERICAN HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION

22. CHAIR CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

23. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF TOURISM

Page | 1 

Page | 5 



24. BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB / GATHERING PLACE

25. REPRESENTATIVE(S) OF CHURCH OUTREACH PROGRAMS

26. ENVIRONMENTAL GROUPS

27. BUSINESS ENTERPRISES

Page | 6 


















	1.18.23 Agenda Packet
	Encl. 1
	Encl. 2
	Encl. 3



